



# Anaheim Pony Baseball 2011 Constitution and By-Laws

---

## Article I: Name

The corporation shall be known as ANAHEIM PONY BASEBALL, INC., a non-profit corporation, herein referred to as APB.

## Article II: Vision and Mission Statement

### VISION

- It is our vision to be recognized as the premier youth athletic program in the State of California.
- Our city, our state, Pony Inc., and our competitors will hold us as an example of excellence.
- We will place our athlete's emotional and physical development and well being before all other needs.
- We will recruit and maintain the best coaching staff in California.
- Our actions will embody our commitment to excellence, tradition, sportsmanship, youth development, honesty and integrity.

### MISSION STATEMENT

- Anaheim Pony Baseball will provide quality education in the rules and skills of baseball. Our program affords the opportunity of all youth to engage in an organized and competitive athletic endeavor. APB is dedicated to the emotional and physical development of the youth in our community. We will aid in the development of all around athletic skills, and develop good sportsmanship and character for the community's youth.
- We believe that by offering high quality training and facilities in the sport of baseball we can significantly contribute to the well being of the youth within our community.
- Our program is designed to encourage its participants, and their families to pursue excellence, self-improvement, community involvement, and good sportsmanship in everything that they do.
- The Board members of APB are dedicated to improving the program to accommodate the needs of your youth, community and family unit.
- APB regards honesty, hard work, good sportsmanship, fair play, youth development, community involvement, striving for excellence, and continuing education as the foundation of success.
- APB is dedicated to offering a baseball program that can be used as an example of excellence and dedication for all youth programs.
- In a joint effort with local high school and college athletic programs, APB is committed to providing the quality training, coaching, and leadership that provides our youth with the necessary foundation to succeed at higher levels of competition.
- APB is dedicated to maintaining reasonable registration fees yet comparable to those of other local athletic organizations.

## Article III: Membership

- A. Membership shall consist of parents, guardians, managers and coaches, who are considered active members. See By-Laws, Article I: Membership.

#### **Article IV: Administration**

- A. The Board of Directors elected annually by active and associate members shall supervise the administrative affairs of APB. The Board shall consist of at least ten members with upper limits dependent on current and expected numbers of league participants.
- B. The Executive Board shall consist of the President, Vice President (s), Secretary, Treasurer, and Public Relations.
- C. All matters concerning administrative affairs or policies of APB shall be decided by a vote of the Board of Directors. No motion shall be carried out without a quorum and a majority vote of those present. If there is not a quorum present, and a vote is needed, a member of the Executive Board may conduct a phone vote. The President does not vote except to break a tie. The Vice President does not vote if he/she is presiding over the meeting in the absence of the President.
- D. All members of the Board of Directors shall be elected for a term of one (1) year, but may be eligible for re-election.

#### **Article V: Meetings**

- A. An election shall be conducted annually to elect a Board of Directors for the ensuing year, at which each active and associate member shall be entitled to one (1) vote.
- B. The Board of Directors shall appoint a nominations committee each year. This committee shall compile a list of candidates for the APB Board of Directors to be presented on the ballot at the annual election to active and associate members. A list of known candidates shall be published on the website at least two (2) weeks prior to the election. A nomination form must be completed by all candidates and presented to the nominations committee at least two weeks prior to closing day.
- C. The President or any two members of the Board may organize special meetings of the Board of Directors, if need be.
- D. One-half (1/2) of the occupied positions of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum at any meeting. A majority vote of those present shall govern.

#### **Article VI: Financial Policy**

- A. The Board of Directors shall decide all matters pertaining to the finances of APB, and shall place all income in a common local treasury, directing expenditures in such a manner that no individual or team has any advantage over another.
- B. An annual audit of league treasury books shall be conducted prior to September 1, by two (2) or more members of the Board of Directors. The league auditor shall conduct a monthly audit of treasury books.
- C. If the office of Treasurer is vacated, two (2) or more members of the Board of Directors shall conduct an audit at once.
- D. Financial members of the Board of Directors are the President, Vice President(s), Treasurer, Secretary, Public Relations Coordinator and Snack Bar Manager(s). A person must have served on the Board of Directors for a period of one (1) year prior to holding one of these positions. Exceptions can be made and voted on as deemed necessary by the Board of Directors.
- E. The APB baseball fiscal year shall be from August 1 through July 31. The active treasurer shall maintain the financial records until the newly elected treasurer assumes office on September 1.
- F. No financial transactions, with the exception of normal recurring business expenses (bank fees, monthly expenses, etc.) may be made in a new Fiscal year until an approved budget has been adopted by the Board of Directors.

#### **Article VII: Rules**

- A. The rules of play shall be the official rules of baseball as published by *Sporting News*, except those modified for the benefit of youth baseball by Pony Baseball, Inc., and APB. In addition, APB rules shall be considered first; Pony Baseball rules and regulations for the current year second, and rules as published by *Sporting News* shall be considered third.
- B. The Board of Directors, at a meeting to be held not less than two (2) months prior to the first pre-season game, shall adopt APB rules. Rules or changes approved by the Board after the annual adoption would be in effect for that year only, and would be subject to incorporation the following year.
- C. The change or adoption of any APB rule will require a one half (1/2) majority vote of the Board of Directors present at such meeting wherein quorum exists.

## **Article VIII: Amendments**

This Constitution, or any section thereof, may be amended or repealed by a one half (1/2) majority vote of the Board of Directors present at any constituted meeting wherein a quorum exists, except that the board may not amend any by-law concerning Directors terms of office. Notice of proposed changes must be in writing and given each member of the Board at least seven (7) days prior to the meeting at which the proposed changes are to be voted upon.

## **BY-LAWS**

### **Article I: Membership**

- A. An active member is any parent or guardian, manager or coach of a participating player, or any adult who serves in an official capacity in APB, i.e., Board Member.
- B. The Board of Directors may grant associate membership to any person who supports or takes part in any APB league activities.
- C. Associate Members who wish to vote must be registered at least two (2) weeks prior to voting day.

### **Article II: Board of Directors**

- A. The Board of Directors shall be elected annually by those active and associate members present on closing day from a slate of candidates prepared by the nominating committee. In order for your name to be placed on the ballot a nomination form must be completed by all candidates and presented to the nominations committee at least two weeks prior to closing day. Newly elected Board Members shall attend all meetings in a non-voting capacity from August 1 through August 31 and assume their newly elected positions on September 1st.
- B. The newly elected board shall receive all league documents from the prior board on or before September 1st. League documents may include but not limited to all financials records (electronic & hard copies), league insurance policies, website access, prior years player information (registration forms), all correspondence with Pony Inc., IRS, FTB, City of Anaheim (including field permits) or any other government agencies, and any and all information necessary to perform the daily duties of the Anaheim Pony Board of Directors. Failure to comply will result in automatic dismissal from the league by executive board members (President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, and Public Relations) for at least a complete year following the time served as an executive board member. These executive board members may not return to APB until all documents listed above are returned to the current board. Further Disciplinary Action may result with a current board vote.
- C. A Board member is an active member by participating in all scheduled APB board meetings or APB events as assigned or necessary. If a Board member is absent, or unexcused two (2) or more times, that member will be brought up for review by the Board of Directors. An unexcused absence is defined as when a member has made no contact with either the Secretary or the President prior to any APB event where that board member has been scheduled.
- D. A Board Member may be removed from office by a one half (1/2) vote of the current board of directors present at any Board Meeting (wherein a quorum exists) for any action or violation of the constitution, by-laws, or standing rules, or for action(s) considered detrimental to the purpose of Pony Baseball Inc., APB, or for non-performance of duty.
- E. Vacancies occurring during the one (1) year term may be filled by a one half (1/2) vote of the board of Directors present at any Board Meeting, provided prior notice is given to all Board Members and a quorum exists.
- F. The offices of President, Vice President(s), Treasurer, Secretary, Public Relations Coordinator and Snack Bar Manager(s) are considered financial in nature, and a person must have served on the Board of Directors for a period of one (1) year prior to running for any of these positions (*Exceptions can be made and voted on as deemed necessary by the Board of Directors*). No two (2) financial positions shall be held in any one (1) household.
- G. The Treasurer and one (1) other financial officer must sign all APB issued checks over \$1,000. The check signers cannot be related.
- H. When money is collected in all APB matters, one of the financial officers must be in attendance and take control of the money. Money should not be collected without issuing a number receipt with the exception of snack bar sales and special league sales such as t-shirts, hats, etc.

### **Article III: Meetings**

#### **A. Board of Director Meetings**

1. Regular Board meetings are held September through August as often as the President deems necessary. A telephone vote is permissible on any matter the President deems necessary; however, such vote must be validated by roll call at the next scheduled meeting. It is the President's responsibility to contact the Secretary to place information on the agenda.
2. A quorum for the purpose of conducting business at any Board meeting is one half (1/2) of the occupied positions of the Board of Directors
3. The secretary must place any active or associate league member desiring to address the board on the agenda one (1) week prior to the schedule meeting.
4. All board meetings will be posted on the league website at least one (1) week prior to the scheduled meeting. Any board meeting changes will be posted in a timely manner.

#### **B. General Membership Meetings**

1. An annual election of active and associate members shall be held during closing ceremonies to elect a new Board. Other general membership meetings may be called at the discretion of the President or Board of Directors.

### **Article IV: Duties of the Board of Directors**

The following describes the general duties and responsibilities of each Director. Any given Director, at the request of the President, may perform special duties. All Board Members are required to assume the responsibilities of Field Commissioner, as scheduled.

#### **A. President**

1. Presides at league meetings and assumes full responsibility for the operation of APB.
2. Receives all mail, supplies and communications from Pony Baseball, Inc.
3. Ensures that all League personnel are briefed on all rules, regulations and policies of Pony Baseball, Inc., and APB.
4. Represents APB in all league matters.
5. Perform such duties and assignments as customarily pertain to the office.
6. Assume the duties of any Board Member in that member's absence.
7. Assists with the counting of Snack Bar receipts, which shall be counted at least once a day during league play with at least one (1) other financial officer present.
8. Assists with player registration.
9. May countersign checks with the Treasurer.

#### **B. Vice-President**

1. Presides over meetings and performs other presidential duties in the absence of the President.
2. Serves as the presidential aide, and carries out such duties and assignments as the President may direct.
3. Serves as an ex-official member of all committees.
4. Obtains field permits.
5. Prepares duty rosters, and all practice, pre-season, and regular season playing schedules for all divisions.
6. Establishes, maintains, and distributes a field commissioner schedule.
7. Assists with the counting of snack bar receipts, which shall be counted at least once a day during league play with at least one (1) other financial officer present.
8. Chairs the Disciplinary Action Committee (DAC).
9. Acts as the league historian. Ensures historical records are passed to each Board of Directors.
10. Coordinates purchase and delivery of trophies and pins.
11. Coordinates participation in Memorial Day Tournaments.
12. Coordinates yearly field reconditioning with city personnel.
13. Coordinates APB winter ball.
14. Assists with player registration.

**C. Secretary**

1. Records and maintains minutes of all meetings in great detail for member to review upon request. Minutes must be approved by the President and Vice-President within 48 Hours of each board meeting.
2. Issues notice of regular and special meetings.
3. Sends out correspondence concerning APB matters, including sponsor Thank You letters.
4. Distributes copies of minutes of previous Boards Meetings at each meeting.
5. Prepares a Calendar of all APB events and activities.
6. After the annual elections, sends a roster of the Board of Directors to the Secretary of State.
7. Prepares league charter documentation.
8. Processes Insurance claims and yearly renewal.
9. Assists with the count and collection of snack bar receipts, which shall be counted at least once a day during league play with at least one (1) other financial officer present.
10. Assists with player registration.

**D. Treasurer**

1. Maintains APB financial records, prepares budgets, and submits financial reports at each board meeting. All financial records will be available to current league members and will be posted on the league's website.
2. Collects, deposits, and disburses APB funds and is the primary signatory on all checks. Maintains all bank records and reconciles all bank accounts monthly to the bank statements within ten (10) of receipt.
3. Assists with the count, collection, and deposit of snack bar receipts, which shall be counted at least once a day during league play with at least one (1) other financial officer present. Deposit of Snack Bar receipts into the bank will occur within five (5) days of collection.
4. Maintains a complete roster of all league sponsors.
5. Assists in receiving all mail, supplies and communications from Pony Baseball, Inc.
6. Tracks all signups including deposits and receipts.
7. Ensures taxes are filed each year by September 1st.
8. Assists with player registration.

**E. Public Relations Coordinator**

1. Coordinates, edits and is responsible for the distribution of the APB newsletter which is published monthly on the league's website.
2. Coordinates and is responsible for the printing and distribution of APB flyers for player registration.
3. Prepares and distributes all APB literature as necessary.
4. Coordinates and is responsible for planning of Opening/Closing Day and all other public relations activities.
5. Coordinates all local and national press releases including advertising for player registration.
6. Coordinates printing and distribution of annual yearbooks.
7. Assists with the count and collection of snack bar receipts, which shall be counted at least once a day during league play with at least one (1) other financial officer present.
8. Assists with player registration.
9. Coordinates all activities in which APB is represented.
10. Coordinates printing and distributions of all league banners.

**F. Player Agent Coordinator**

1. Makes preparations for try-outs, and conducts the annual player draft.
2. Maintains team rosters for each team in all divisions throughout the season.
3. Organizes and coordinates procedures for managers and coaches, including recruitment, training, and replacement.
4. Organizes and coordinates all Coaches and Managers Clinics.
5. Represents managers, coaches and individual players in all APB matters.
6. Must call and preside over periodic managers and coaches meetings.
7. Organizes and coordinates annual First Aid Clinic for all managers and coaches with the safety coordinator.
8. Organizes All-Star selection, certifications, and verifications of eligibility for all divisions.
9. Coordinates Annual All-Star Classic games for all applicable divisions.
10. Implements draft procedures.
11. Notifies Divisional Player Agent of any player transfers, replacements, hat picks, or vacancies.
12. Assists with player registration.

**G. Equipment Manager/Groundskeeper**

1. Purchases and maintains all playing equipment, including, but not limited to, scorebooks, chalk, game balls, etc. All purchases must be approved by the President and in accordance with the budget.
2. Ensures that all teams are adequately and safely equipped.
3. Presents to the Board an estimated budget of next year's expenditures.
4. Arranges for the return and storage of equipment during the off-season.
5. Maintains records of all equipment dispersals and require managers to sign for all equipment issued and returned.
6. Submits pre-season and post-season inventory reports to the Board of Directors.
7. Ensures the fields are adequately and safely equipped.

**H. Umpire-in-Chief**

1. Enlists paid and volunteer umpires.
2. Assures that umpires are present for all games, and evaluates their progress and performance during the season.
3. Prepares and submits a budget to the Board.
4. Organizes an Umpire Clinic for managers, coaches and prospective volunteer umpires.
5. With Board approval, may establish umpire participation requirements.
6. Chairs the Decisions Committee upon appointment by the league President.
7. Chairs the Rules Committee.
8. Publishes new rulebooks and distributes to all managers, coaches and Board Members.

**I. Team Parent Coordinator**

1. Coordinates and organizes league Team Parents.
2. Coordinates scorekeeping meetings.
3. Coordinates APB fundraising activities.
4. Coordinates and organizes the taking and distribution of APB team pictures.
5. Distributes sponsor plaques.
6. Assists with player registration.
7. Prepares parent package each season. Ensures package is posted on league website.

**J. Snack Bar Manager**

1. Assigns personnel to work in the snack bar during all league games.
2. Purchases all food and supplies for the snack bars at Brookhurst and Pearson Parks.
3. Ensures the neatness and cleanliness of the snack bar and utensils.
4. Ensures the snack bar is opened one (1) hour prior to the first (1st) game scheduled.
5. Assists with the count and collection of snack bar receipts, which shall be counted at least once a day during league play with at least one (1) other board member present.

**K. Divisional Player Agents**

1. Perform and assist in whatever duties the Player Agent Coordinator directs.
2. Verifies eligibility of all players for All-Stars through waivers signed by parent/guardians and manager attendance records.
3. Verifies all absences with the players' parent/guardian within 72 hours.
4. Represents managers, coaches and individual players in APB divisional matters.
5. Must call and preside over periodic managers and coaches meetings.
6. Provides team standings for their respective divisions to the webmaster for posting on the website.
7. Audits scorebooks to ensure APB rules are being followed.
8. Collects bi-weekly attendance records from managers.
9. Passes out, collects, and verifies each All-Star waiver.
10. Must notify all managers within their division prior to any hat pick or transfer.
11. Ensures that their divisional try-outs have been coordinated and rated.

**L. Assistant Directors**

1. Whenever an assistant to any Director is authorized to sit as a Board Member, he/she will assist the primary Director as necessary to perform the duties of office.

#### **M. Field Commissioners**

All Board Members are required to assume the responsibilities of Field Commissioner, as scheduled.

1. Opens equipment sheds one (1) hour prior to the first scheduled game of the day.
2. Ensures that both teams prepare fields before games.
3. Should notify the snack bar manager if the snack bar is not properly staffed. The field commissioner will assist the snack bar manager in finding emergency replacement workers if needed.
4. Assigns each team proper scorebooks from the snack bar and distributes game balls to umpires.
5. Maintains discipline on and off the field, and enforces APB Rules and Regulations.
6. Ensures that only authorized personnel are in the snack bar.
7. Ensures that both teams clean the stands and dugout areas after each game.
8. Ensures that trashcans are emptied on each shift.
9. Remains on each shift until a replacement relieves him/her or another Board Member covers the shift, regardless of scheduled time.
10. Ensures all closing responsibilities are completed.
11. Must fill out a Field Commissioners report and notify the proper Director within 48 hours of any unusual circumstance and/or problem.
12. May not assume any other duties (i.e. manager, coach, scorekeeper, etc.) during his/her shift as Field Commissioner.
13. Ensures that the baseball fields are SAFE and playable prior to the start of each game. If the fields are unsafe due to rain, lightning, etc., the field commissioner will cancel the current games and advise the Player Agent Coordinator, so that a decision can be made regarding subsequent games. The Field Commissioner should also notify managers, Umpire-in-Chief, and snack bar volunteers upon cancellations of games.
14. Ensures that the snack bar is properly closed after the last game of each day.
15. Verifies that only coaches of record are on the playing field. If any coaching substitutions are made, the Field Commissioner needs to be notified.

#### **N. League Auditor**

1. Review all income and expenses on a monthly basis.
2. Review bank reconciliation and bank statements on a monthly basis.
3. Review snack bar receipts and deposit on a monthly basis.
4. Ensure financial policies outlined in the by-laws are followed by the board of directors.

#### **O. Registration Coordinator**

1. Makes preparations for and supervises player registration.
2. Maintains the master waiting list for each division and assigns players from such list as needed to fill team rosters according to APB rules.
3. Notifies Player Agent Coordinator of any player transfers, replacements, hat picks, or vacancies.
4. Maintains all registration Applications.
5. Distributes copies of registration applications to all divisional player agents.
6. Coordinates registration funds pick-up with Treasurer or (1) other financial officer.

#### **P. Webmaster**

1. Maintains league website with the help of the Board of Directors.
2. Maintains league e-mail accounts and distributes emails accordingly to all Board members.
3. Assigns team pages during the Winter/Spring seasons.
4. Posts team standings for all divisions.
5. Posts meeting minutes and financial statements after any scheduled meeting.
6. Ensures currency of domain registration/website hosting services.

## **Article V: Committees**

### **A. Decisions Committee**

The President shall appoint a Decisions Committee, chaired by the Umpire in Chief, to receive and resolve all protests lodged during the playing of league games. The board of Directors must approve each member. At least three (3) members of the committee must be present to render a decision. The chairman does not have a vote. The committee's decisions are final and not subject to appeal.

1. Each manager/coach involved in the protest has the right to appear before the committee, at its scheduled meeting before a decision is rendered. The manager/coach must receive at least a three (3) day notification prior to the meeting.
2. If a manager/coach cannot attend the scheduled meeting, he/she forfeits his/her right to appear before the committee.
3. The Decisions Committee will be comprised of at least one (1) representative from each division, (Shetland, Pinto, Mustang, Bronco, and Pony) with no more than two (2) Board members, and a total of seven (7) for the committee.

### **B. Disciplinary Actions Committee (DAC)**

The Disciplinary Actions Committee, chaired by the Vice-President, will receive and resolve all disciplinary actions required to be reviewed during the playing of league games or league activities. At least three (3) members of the committee must be present to render a decision. The chairman does not have a vote. The committees' decisions are final and are not subject to appeal.

1. Each player, manager, coach, or person involved in the disciplinary action has the right to appear before DAC, at its scheduled meeting, before a decision is rendered. All parties involved must be notified of the pending hearing, which will be held at the Vice Presidents' earliest possible convenience.
2. Each person involved in the disciplinary action may bring one (1) other person, in an advisory capacity, but written statements may be accepted.
3. If a player, manager, coach or person cannot attend the scheduled meeting, he/she forfeits his/her right to appear before the committee.
4. The DAC will be comprised of at least the Vice-President, Player Agent Coordinator, the Division Player Agent, Field Commissioner on duty and two (2) at large members appointed by the President and approved by the Board.
5. The following violations will not be reviewed by the DAC but will result in immediate expulsion from Anaheim Pony Baseball with a vote from the Anaheim Pony Board of Directors. The offending person will be advised in writing that he or she has been expelled from present and future participation in the league.
  - a. Any attempt to physically harm an umpire, coach, manager or player.
  - b. Any manager, coach, parent, guardian, player or other member willfully striking or fighting with any other manager, coach, parent, guardian, player or other member at any league game or APB activities.
  - c. Causing physical harm to an opponent due to any act of violence.
  - d. Theft of league funds.

### **C. Special Committees**

Special Committees may be appointed by the President and approved by the Board to serve as needed.

## **Article VI: Managers**

- A. All potential managers and coaches must apply and be approved annually by the Board of Directors. The Player Agent Coordinator is responsible for assembling the applications and presenting them to the Board for approval and back-round checks.
- B. Managers will be chosen on the basis of ability and leadership, and are entrusted with the physical, mental, and emotional development of all players on their respective teams.
- C. Managers Responsibilities include:
  1. Conduct training in all phases of play in accordance with APB rules.
  2. Commits to upholding all APB rules.
  3. Ensures respect for umpires at all times, exercises leadership in promoting fairness, courtesy and good sportsmanship on or off the field of play and extends a positive influence to all spectators.
  4. Pays particular attention to safety rules, permits only safe and proper use of equipment, and employs methods of play designed to avoid injury to any person.
  5. Assists and ensures parent participation with all league activities including, but not limited to, all fundraising, and snack bar coverage. Will carry out all league assignments during the playing season.

6. Managers will be responsible for paying half (1/2) of the cost of the total umpire fee, in the event of a forfeit without 24 hours notice. The forfeiture fee must be paid prior to the next scheduled game. If the fee is not paid, the manager will be suspended until such fee has been paid.
7. Managers are responsible for maintaining attendance records for all practices and games. Forms will be submitted to the Divisional Player Agent on a bi-weekly basis. In the event of a player drop, managers must notify their Divisional Player Agent immediately, but no later than 48 hours, of their knowledge of the drop.
8. The Board of Directors reserves the right to refuse any managers/coaches application.
9. Managers shall document all sponsorship monies and will be held accountable.

## **Article VII: Financial Policy**

### **A. Budget**

1. The annual budget will be prepared by the Treasurer and submitted to the Board for approval. Included in the main budget, the budgets for each individual Director will also be approved by the Board. The budget will include all projected income and expenses for the fiscal year. The budget will be available for review upon request from any member.
2. Expenditures will be made in accordance with the approved budget. Expenditures outside or exceeding the budget require approval by the Board of Directors. Each month the budget will be reviewed by the Treasurer comparing budget vs. actual income and expenses.

### **B. Sponsor Policy**

1. The Board on an annual basis shall determine the fee for full sponsorship for a team. The fee for the 2011 season is \$200.00. For each full sponsorship the sponsor will receive:
  - a. Sponsor plaque.
  - b. Recognition at games (in the newsletter).
  - c. Advertisement on the APB web page.
  - d. Mention in our annual yearbook.
  - e. May include other benefits as well.
2. Teams will receive 50% of all sponsorships up to the first \$750.00. Between \$751.00 and \$999 the team will receive 75% of all sponsorships. After \$1,000.00 the teams will receive all sponsorships turned in. Teams will be responsible for plaques for any sponsorship over the \$1,000.00. Money returned to the team will be used for the team only.
3. Each team shall solicit its own sponsors.
4. Grants or special donations will be decided upon an individual basis.
5. All sponsorship checks are to be made payable to APB and turned into the Treasurer, who will then issue a team refund in no less than ten (10) business days.
6. Managers shall document all sponsorship and team fundraising monies, as they will be held accountable.

### **C. Trophies**

1. Trophies or medals may be given each year based upon the number of teams and financial condition of APB.

## **Article VIII: Amendments**

These by-laws, or any section thereof, may be amended or repealed by a one half (1/2) majority vote of the Board of Directors at any duly constituted meeting wherein a quorum exists, provided written notice is given to all Board Members at least seven (7) days in advance.

**ANAHEIM PONY BASEBALL  
2010-2011 BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

President*	DAVID ZUNIGA
Vice-President*	CRAIG LOZANO
Secretary*	ROSA SERNA
Treasurer*	SILVIA ALBAYATI
Public Relations Coordinator*	Vacant
Snack Bar Manager	ANA ORTIZ
Asst. Snack Bar Manager	MELISSA LOZANO
Team Parent Coordinator	NELLIE ROTH
Registrations Coordinator	NANCY GUTIERREZ
Safety Coordinator	Vacant
Webmaster	STEVE CLARK
League Auditor	Vacant
Equipment & Field Manager	ROBERT SERNA
Umpire in Chief	EDDIE GAXIOLA
Player Agent Coordinator	TERRY KARLOVICH
Foal Player Agent	ROBERT FLORES
Shetland Player Agent	ERIC SCHMIDT
Pinto Player Agent	Vacant
Mustang Player Agenet	Vacant
Bronco Player Agent	SHAWN ALBAYATI
Pony Player agent	MARK SPATHES
Assistant Director	NANCY RAMOS
Assistant Director	CONNIE PINKERTON

---